M/s. Anil Kamal Garg & Company

INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

"Kamal Kripa", 97, Jaora Compound, Indore - 452 001 (M.P)
Phone : 0731-2700840, 2704354

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,
The Members,
HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of HIGHWAY
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“the Holding Company™), its Subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”). which
comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended. and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as the ‘Consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us. the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Group as at March 31st, 2025, its Consolidated Profit and Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Changes in Equity and its Consolidated Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated F inancial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for gur opinioa on the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state
of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing
the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Contd...3




[3]

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Group has adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
cv1dencc obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

ay cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiary namely ‘M/s. Highway & Tandon Tollways Private Limited’ and an
unincorporated subsidiary being an Association of Persons namely ‘M/s. Highway &
Tandon Tollways‘ whose financial statements reflect Group’s Share of Net Profit of
Rs.48.49.651/- and Rs. 2,35,41,899/- for the year ended on March 31%, 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the Management. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections
(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is
based solely on the report of the other auditor. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph
4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, as per the information and explanation provided to us by the management of
the Parent Company, we report that the auditors of the subsidiary companies
included in the consolidated financial statements have not made any qualifications
or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.
Therefore, the clause (xxi) of the aforesaid order is not applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

(c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with
ian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
Contd...6
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of
the Holding Company as on March 31st, 2025, taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the
statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the companies in the Group
is disqualified as on March 31st, 2025, from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure-A”; and

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2025 has been paid/provided by the Parent Company to its directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiary as noted in the “Other Matter” paragraph:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations as at 31 March 2025 on the consolidated financial position
of the Group — Refer Note - 42 to the Consolidated financial
statements.

(i))  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(ili)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

(iv) (a) The Parent Company’s management has represented that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent company

‘Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Contd...7



(b)

©

[7]

The Parent Company’s management has represented, that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Parent company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures that we considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

(v)  The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi)

Place :Indore
Dated : June 17", 2025

Based on our examination, which included test checks, and as
reported by the auditor of the subsidiary Company, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary have used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31%, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our
audit, on test check basis, we did not came across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit
trail has been preserved by the Company and its subsidiary as
per statutory requirements for record retention.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrati

=X
Obr~lo
ol

| *

j‘: (Devendra Bansal)
', Partner

Membership No. : 078057

NBor~— =
ICATUDIN - ...
25078057 BMNXOE 6753




ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f), under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED on the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended March 3 1%, 2025, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of
31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
management are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Contd... 2




[2]

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the respective Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. :

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Parent Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants

Place :Indore
Dated : June 17th, 2025

Partner
lembership No. : 078057
ICAIUDIN : ......

250F8057 BMNXOE 6754




HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

[In Millions
Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 111.72 125.46
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 - 8
(c) Right-of-Use Assets 4 3.03 4.27
(d) Investment Property 5 131.94 149.85
(e) Goodwill = =
(f) Other Intangible assets 6 0.03 0.09
(g) Financial Assets
i) Loans 7 112.50 59.32
ii) Other financial assets 8 44 .42 102.84
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 1.47 1.34
Total Non-current assets 405.11 443.17
(2) |Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 866.02 697.84
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables " 398.29 272.35
il) Cash and cash equivalents 12 92.55 168.48
iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 56.15 64.35
iv) Other financial assets 14 316.11 323.35
(¢) Current Tax Assets (net) 15 24.71 18.42
(d) Other current assets 16 156.68 38.38
Total Current assets 1,910.51 1,583.17
TOTAL ASSETS 2,315.62 2,026.34
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 17 288.95 96.32
(b) Other Equity 18 839.41 835.38
Total Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,128.36 931.70
Non-controlling Interests 19 48.86 70.15
48.86 70.15
Total Equity 1,177.22 1,001.85
Liabilities
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 20 130.67 84.35
ii) Lease liabilities 21 1.35 3.00
iii) Other non-current liabilities 22 - -
(b) Long term provisions 23 3.71 3.58
135.73 90.93




HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
. [CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 (Contd.....)

[In Millions]
* [Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(3) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 24 587.48 611.87
ii) Lease liabilities 25 1.65 1.47
iii) Trade payables 26
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 64.04 5.68
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 90.22 136.58
iv) Other financial liabilities 27 204,57 152.50
(b) Other current liabilities 28 38.74 9.46
(c) Provisions 29 15.97 16.00
Total current liabilities 1,002.67 933.56
Total Liabilities 1,138.40 1,024.49
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,315.62 2,026.34

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company

véndra Bansal Arun Kumar Jain

Partner

Managing Director
Membership No. : Chief Financial Officer
ICAIUDIN ; ... DIN : 00006132  DIN : 00006120
2 6 0}8 05

Indore, June 17th, 2025 Indore, June 17th, 2025

Highway Infrait/r»«ture Limited

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors of

bh Mittal
nt Chief Financial
Officer

ief Executive Officer

DIN : 03561530

Membership No. : 73755

Palak Rathore
Company Secretary




HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025
In Millions’

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

INCOME
| Revenue from operations 30 4,957.15 5734.54
] Other income 31 B7.63 31.22
n TOTAL INCOME 5,044.78 5,765.76
v EXPENSES
Operating costs 32 465863 5,263.92
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 33 (168.18) (93.20)
Employee benefits expense 34 108.70 13261
Finance costs 35 74.356 80.25
Depreciation and amortization expense 36 23,95 26.11
Other expenses 37 4478 46.79
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,742.23 5,466.48
v Profit before tax (HlI-IV) 302.55 299.28
Vi Tax expense:
Current tax 78.70 B6.85
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods (0.02) 0.24
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (0.11) (1.95)
Total tax expense (VI) 78.57 8514
Vil |Profit for the year (V-VI) 223.98 21414
Vil |Other comprehensive income 38 \
A. (i) tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (0.06) (0.02)
{ii) Income tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 0.02 0.01

B. (i) tems that will be reclassified subsequently lo profit or loss - i
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year (net of tax) (VIII) (0.04) (0.01)
IX TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (NET OF TAX) (Vil+ Viil) 22394 21413

X Profit for the year attributable to :
- Owners of the company 196.70 189.62
- Non-controlling interest 39 27.28 24,52

Xl Other comprehensive income attributable to :
- Owners of the company (0.04) (0.01)
- Non-controlling interest - -

XN Total comprehensive income attributable 1o :

- Owners of the company 196.66 189.61
- Non-controlling interest 27.28 24,52
X Eamings per equity share® 40
Basic (inRs.) 3.40 3.28
Diluted (In Rs.) 3.40 3.28

*Also Refer Note - 17 for changes in number of equily shares outstanding

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company Highway Nyu Limited
-~ g”* Qﬂ;
A n Kumar Jain rawal kit Tandon ittal Palak Rathore
anaging Director Whole Time Director & hief Executive Officer Joil lef Financial ~ Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Officer
DIN : 00006132 DIN : 00008120 DIN : 03561530 Membership No. : 73755

—— Indore, June 17th, 2025
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HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025

-~ [In Millions;
; Year ended Year ended
S.No. |Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 302.55 299.28
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 23.95 26.11

Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.38 0.48

Other finance costs 73.97 89.77

Interest income (21.24) (16.34)

Land lease income (0.39) (0.37)

Profit on sale of investment properties (28.42) (0.57)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of Propert, Plant & Equipment (3.38) 4.04

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (0.06) 44 81 (0.02) 103.10
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 347.36 402.38
Net change in :

Inventories (168.18) (93.19)

Trade receivables (125.95) (42.80)

Other financial assets 7.24 (208.17)

Other current assets (118.30) 19.79

Trade payables 12.00 69.10

Other financial liabilities 52.07 67.47

Other current liabilities 29.28 (2.83)

Short term provisions (0.03) (311.87) 9.30 (181.33)
Cash generated from/ (used in) Operations 35.48 221.05
Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 84.98 78.86
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities (49.49) 142.19

B. CASH FLOW FROM | TING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Other Intangible assets (16.88) (33.96)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.36 15.24
Purchase of Investment Property (2.60) (3.79)
Proceeds from sale of Investment Property 48.93 3.10
Movement in other long term loans and advances (53.18) (43.50)
Movement in other non-current assets 58.42 38.07
Investment in Fixed Deposits 100.96 (90.88)
Movement in Non-controlling interests (48.55) 38.74
Interest Income 21.24 16.34
Land Lease Income 0.39 0.37
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Investing Activities 120.09 (60.27)




HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (Contd.....)

[In Millions]
Year ended Year ended
S.No. |Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Long term borrowings 46,32 (112.00)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Short term borrowings (24.39) 175.46
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Other financial liabilities - -
Movement in Long term provisions 0.13 (0.72)
Payment of Lease Liabilities including Interest thereon (1.85) (1.74)
Other Finance Costs (73.97) (89.77)
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Financing Activities (53.76) (28.77)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C] 16.84 §3.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 65.25 12.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 82.09 65.25
Components of cash and cash equivalents
as at the yearend :
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 75.29 57.92
Cash on Hand 6.80 7.33
82.09 65.25
Comgonent.;; of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash flow statement
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

March 31st, 2025

March 31st, 2024

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 75.29 57.92
Cash on Hand 6.80 7.33
Cash and cash equivalents (closing) (refer note 12) 82.09 65.25
Non-cash financing activities

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

March 31st, 2025

March 31st, 2024

Acquisition of Right of use assets

3.05

&
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HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (Contd.....)

c in ri es
[in Millions]

Particulars As at Cash flows Others As at

April 1st, 2023 March 31st, 2024
Non-current borrowings 197.20 (112.00) (0.85) 84.35
Non-current lease liabilties 2.26 - 0.74 3.00
Long term provisions 4.30 (0.72) - ase
Current borrowings 436.40 175.46 0.01 611.87
Current lease liabilties 0.42 (1.74) 2.79 1.47
Total Liabilties from financing activities 640.58 61.00 2,69 704.27
[+] in liabilties a n

[in Miliions;

Particulars As at Cash flows Others As at

April 1st, 2024 March 31st, 2025
Non-current borrowings 84.35 46.32 - 130.67
Non-current lease liabilties 3.00 - (1.65) 1.35
Long term provisions 3.58 0.13 - 37
Current borrowings 611.87 (24.39) - 587.48
Current lease liabilties 1.47 (1.85) 203 1.65
Total Liabilties from financing activities 704.27 20.21 0.38 724.86
Notes:
()] Others in borrowing represents impact of amortisation of upfront fees paid on borrowing, remeasurement of long term borrowing and reclassification of borrowings.

(i) Others in lease liability includes effect of interest accrual on lease liability, addtion to lease liabiltiy, remeasurement and reclassification of lease liabiltiy .

Notes :

Chartered Accountants of India.

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Anil Kamal Garg & Company

ICAIUDIN : ...

25078057

Indore, June 17th, 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors of

Highway |mrjn7;ﬁm Limited

"
M
Financial Officer
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'‘Ankit Tandon

n Kumar Jain
Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer

DIN : 00006132 DIN : 00006120 DIN : 03561530

Indore, June 17th, 2025
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holé Time Director & Chief Executive Officer Joint

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows' issued by the Institute of|

W

Palak Rathore

Company Secretary

Membership No. : 73755




HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN - U45203MP2006PLC018398]

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
N -1A-COR

« Highway Infrastructure Limited ("the Company" or "the Parent Company"), was, initially incorporated as a Partnership Firm, under The Indian Parinership Act,
1832, in the year 1995, in the name of 'Highway Enterprises’ and subsequently got converted into a Private Limited Company by the name 'Highway
Infrastructure Private Limited' on February 10th, 2006 under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Thereafter, the status of the company was changed to a Public
Limited Company w.e.f. May 4th, 2018. The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 57/FA, Scheme No. 94, Pipliyahana Junction, Ring Road, Indore
(M.P.) - 452016.

The Group, comprising of the company along with its one subsidiary company ‘Highway & Tandon Tollways Private Limited' and one unincorporated subsidiary
entity 'Highway & Tandon Tollways' being an association of person over which the company has substantial control, is engaged in business of running toll
plazas, construction activities and real estate development.

N - - SIGNIFIC.
1B.1 asis of Pre ion of ial men

The Management of the Parent Company has already prepared restated consolidated financial statements for the financial years 2023-24,2022-23 and 2021-22
as per Ind AS. Accordingly, the date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2021.The Company has complied with Ind AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared after incorporating adjustments in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accordingly, the Parent Company has prepared these Consolidated Financial Statements which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025, and accounting policies and other explanatory information
(together hereinafter referred to as 'the Financial Statements’).

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on June 17th, 2025.

Unless otherwise stated. the Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions.

1B.2 f Consoli

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial Statements of the Parent company and its subsidiaries (which includes one unincorporated entity
being an Association of Persons over which the Company is having control) for the years ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 .

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity that
significantly affect the entity's returns.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

(a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee), {
(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the investee, and
(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(b) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

{c) The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

(d) The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company cbtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial information from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a

member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial information for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member's financial informai'ty'a preparing the consolidated financial information to ensure

conformity with the group's accounting _ p
X @, ¢ { W




1B3

1B.4

1B.5

solidati
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full).
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controliing interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to
the statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Group.

‘When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of

the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as required/permitted by applicable Ind AS's). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109 when applicable, or the cost of initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture

Following subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India, have been considered in the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

Name of the Subsidiary Percentage of Holding
As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
Highway and Tandon Toliways Private Limited 51 51
Highway and Tandon Toliways (Association of 51 51
persons)
Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of accounting,
except for the Plan assets under Defined Benefit Plans which have been measured at fair value. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Group uniess otherwise stated.

Functional Cu

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group's functional currency.

Rounding Off

awthe Consolidated Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Millions, unless otherwise stated.

Ve



1B86

1B.6.1

1B62
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(i)
(iii)

(iv)

1B.6.3

@

(i)

(iii)

n i li
Plan i PP

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable
to the assets Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under ‘Capital
Advances'.

(b). Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. In the carrying amount of an item of PPE, the
cost of replacing the part of such an item is recognized when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition principles.

(c) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided by parent company and subsidiary company on the basis of useful life of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, whereas Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment by the Unincorporated subsidiary has
been provided on the rates prescribed by the Income-Tax Rules, 1962. If, significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different
useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(d). The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
(e) Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

M Spare parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which meet the recognition criteria are capitalized and added in the carrying
amount of such item. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from their use or upon disposal. Other machinery spares are treated as "stores & spares” forming part of the inventory.

(9)- The Company has adopted the cost model of subsequent recognition to measure the Property, Plant and Equipment. Consequently, all Property,
Plant and Equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair
value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of camrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognized.

C . { Amortisat

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided by Parent Company on the straight line method and Subsidiary Company by Written down value
method in the manner prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Further, its unircorporated subsidiary entity has provided depreciation on the
written down value method as per depreciation rate prescribed in Schedule VI of the Income Tax Rules, 1962.

Depreciation on addition to Property, Plant and Equipments in case of parent and subsidiary company are provided on pro-rata basis from the date of assets are
ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discarded from Property, Plant and Equipments are provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of pro-
rata as the case may be.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with fipite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

%’ %%\/MMW'



(iv)

v)

1B.6.4

1B.6.5

1B.6.6

SN Type of Asset Schedule |l Life (years) Useful Lives
1 Furniture & Fixtures 10 10
2 Plant & Machineries 9-15 9-15
3 Other Machineries 15 15
4 Earth Moving Equipments 9 9
3 Electrical Fittings & Equipments 15 15
4 Office/Electric Equipments 5 5
-5 Vehicles 8 8
6 Computers 3 3

The useful live of intangible assets are estimated as follows:

Type of Asset Schedule |l Life (years) Useful Lives

Software 5 5

(a)

(b)

(©

-in-P,

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’. Such costs comprises
purchase price of asset including import duties and non-refundable taxes and costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

Cost directly attributable to projects under construction include costs of employee benefits, expenditure in relation to survey and investigation
activities of the projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation and assembly costs, professional fees, expenditure
on maintenance and up-gradation etc. of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project, interest during construction
and other costs if attributable to construction of projects. Such costs are accumulated under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’ and subsequently allocated on
systematic basis over major assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities, on commissioning of projects.

Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not have control but the creation of which is essential principally
for construction of the project is capitalized and carried under 'Capital Work-in-Progress’ and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over major
assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities, on commissioning of projects, keeping in view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure”
concepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant & Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is charged to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(b)

The Company and its Susbsidiaries assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets or group of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to
the assets.In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

(c) The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years,

(d) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the end of the financial year at the CGU level, as appropriate, and
when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

Leases

The Company as a lessee

(a) The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at

inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether :

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and

tiii-) the"com mm-Mﬁgmtonmmmgam )&, . Q%



1B.6.7

1B.6.8

1B.6.9

(b) Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the
lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term,
the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of
the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period
relating to the existing lease contracts.

(c) At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right-of-Use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short term
and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(d) The lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

(e) The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

f) ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

(9) The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

(h) Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

The Company as a lessor

(a) The Company has not entered into any material lease contract in the capacity of "Lessor".

Investment Property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes). Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including import duties, non- refundable taxes, after deducting trade discounts & rebates, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and any cost directly attributable in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be ready for its intended use. After initial
recognition, the Company measures investment property by using cost model.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.

Although investment property is measured using cost model, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Notes in accordance with Ind AS 40-;
Investment Property'.

Assets Held For Sale

The assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. The
condition for classification of held for sale is met when the asset is available for immediate sale and the same is highly probable of being completed within cne
year from the date of classification under the head 'Assets Held for Sale'. The Company, is not holding any asset which is to be classified as 'Assets Held For
Sale'.

Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assete?and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value, are adjusted to the fair value, through profit and loss, on initial recognition.
Plrchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

B




(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

0]

(i)

(c)

(b) inanci

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

lassi ion of Financial
Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business model for managing those financial
assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately

next reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109 — Financial
Instruments.

Other Equity Investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those

equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. However, dividend
on such equity investments are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss when the company's right to receive payment is established.

financial

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other
than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

« The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If
there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Initial n

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carmied at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also
subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the
hedged item affects proﬁt or !oss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forec.:ast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-

[V B ey




1B.6.10

1B.6.11

1B6.12

(d)

(e)

Inventories
(a)
(b)

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

0]

(i)

Cash flow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of
movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve being part of other comprehensive
income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash
flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs.
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon
the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in
cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

lue Hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of
change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices.

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period of maturity.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the
Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Modification

A modification of a financial asset or liabilities occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset or liabilities are
renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial instruments. Any gain/ loss on modification is charged to
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares are valued at lower of the cost or net realisable value.

Work-in-Progress, Developed properties and Properties under development are valued at lower of specifically identifiable cost or net realisable value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less, that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Provi

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

il o

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

Such provisions are determined based on management's estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet

date. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a standalone asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current management's estimate.

Contin

gent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements only when inflow of economic benefits is probable.




1B.6.13 in e

(a) The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification which is based upon the Company's
operating cycle. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) An asset is treated as current when it is:

(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

. (ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(i) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period
(c) A liability is treated as current when :
(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

1B6.14  Revenue from Operations

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue comprises:

(a) Toll Revenue
Toll Revenue is recognised in respect of toll charges collected at the respective Tolls.

(b) Works Contract Receipts
In respect to Construction activities, the company is following the Percentage of Completion method and accordingly, the revenue is
recognized and recovered on bill to bill basis and expenses are booked as incurred thereby giving rise to work in progress. However, it is
not practicable to disclose stage of completion of contract. The main activity of the Group, besides operating / maintaining toll plazas, is

taking Government & other Contracts, which are fixed in terms of item rate basis or percentage on C.S.R. / S.O.R. basis, and billing is
made on running verification by the Contractee.

(c) Real Estate Sales
In respect to Real Estate Business as Land Owner, Builder & Colonizer, the Group is following the method to recognize revenue when the
ownership of the property is transferred i.e. on execution of the registered sale deed of the said property in the name of customer.

(d) Machi
Hire Charges from Machinery & equipment is accounted on accrual basis.

1B.6.15 Other Income

(a) In m

For all Debt Instruments measured either at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income, interest income is recorded using
the Effective Interest Rate [EIR]. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability.

(b) All Other Incomes are recognized and accounted for on accrual basis,
1B.6.16  Govemment Grants
(i) The Group recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will
be received. Government grants related to assets are presented by deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the asset. Government grants related to

revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs
which they are intended to compensate.

(i) Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with.

(iii) When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of
this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities.
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1B.6.17 Employee Benefits Expense

S| mpl

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays specified contributions to a separate entity. The Group
makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and ESIC Fund. The Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme and ESIC fund scheme, as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognised as an asset to that extent.

- | n - Defi Plan

(i) The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(ii) The Group pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Group at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972.

(iii) The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The
gratuity fund has been approved by the governing Income-Tax authorities.

(iv) The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method , with Actuarial
Valuations and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' services. The liability recognized
in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets

(v) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

1B.6.18  Finance Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial pericd of
time to get ready for its intended use.

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

18.6.19  Income Taxes

Income-Tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or Equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. V




1B.6.20 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

(b) Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of
exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which are capitalised as cost of assets.

(c) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of
Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

1B.6.21 rnings P

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of shares issued
during the year including bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as
at the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.

1B.6.22  Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when
approved by the shareholders.

1B.6.23 Statement of Cash Flows
(a) Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term and highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(b) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on 'Statement of
Cash Flows'.

1B.6.24 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is component of the Group that engages in the business activity from which the Group eamns revenues and incurs expenses, for which
discrete financial information is available and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM), in deciding about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The Group's chief operating decision maker are the Whole-time Director and CEOQ.

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment. Inter segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included
under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities".

N -1C- JUD Sou F ESTIMATION UN

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value.
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

1C.2 ili ivabl




1C.3

1C5

Provisi

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgment
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash infiows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

mpairme! i ial
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Group uses judgment in

making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

TE - 1D - Chan in Accountin li |

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023, to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from April 01, 2023.

1D.1

1D.2

NO

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also
been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company and its subsidiary's Financial Statements.

i f nting Policies - Am: n | 1
The amendments aim fo help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements.

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be
recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been
made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements.

- Stan Yet Eff

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA'") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. During year ended March 31, 2025 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards that are not yet effective.

T
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Note - 3 - Capital work-in-progress

[In Millions

Pagticulars

Furniture &
Fixtures

Total

Cost/ Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1st, 2023
Additions
Transfer
Disposal

Balance as at March 31st, 2024

[in Millions]

Cost/ Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1st, 2024
Additions

Transfer

Disposal

Balance as at March 31st, 2025

Note - 3.1 - Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

As at 31st March, 2024

[In Millions]

Particulars

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1to 2 years

2 to 3 years

More than
3 years

TOTAL

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily suspended

TOTAL

As at 31st March, 2025

[In Millions]

Particulars

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1to 2 years

2 to 3 years

More than
3 years

TOTAL

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily suspended

TOTAL




Note - 4 - Right-of-Use Assets

[In Millions]
Particulars Office Land Total
Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 3.36 - 3.36
Additions = 3.05 3.05
Disposal = % -
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 3.36 3.05 6.41
Depreciation
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 0.96 - 0.96
Depreciation charge for the year 0.48 0.70 1.18
Disposal = - g
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 1.44 0.70 2.14
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 1.92 2.35 4.27
[In Millions]
Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 3.36 3.05 6.41
Additions = f -
Disposal - - -
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 3.36 3.05 6.41
Depreciation
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 144 0.70 2.14
Depreciation charge for the year 0.48 0.76 1.24
Disposal - - -
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 1.92 1.46 3.38
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 1.44 1.59 3.03
Notes :
1 Lease deeds of all the immovable properties included in Right-of-use assets are held in the name of the concerning entity of the Group.
2 The Group has not revalued any of its Right-of-use assets during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and during F.Y. 2023-24.
3 Nil amount of borrowing costs is capitalised.
4 Nil amount of impairment loss is recognised.

]




Note - 5 - Investment Property

[In Millions

Particulars Agricultural Lands | Other Lands and Total
. Open Plots
Grass carrying value
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 56.90 91.69 148.59
Additions B 3.79 3.79
Transfer - -
Disposal - (2.53) (2.53)
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 56.90 92.95 149.85
Depreciation
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 - B -
Depreciation charge for the year - - -
Disposal - - =
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 = = 3
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 56.90 92.95 149.85
[In Millions]

Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 56.90 92.95 149.85
Additions 2.60 71.10 73.70
Transfer - (71.10) (71.10)
Disposal (20.51) - (20.51)
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 38.99 92.95 131.94
Depreciation
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 - 2 =
Depreciation charge for the year = = _
Disposal = . .
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 # A =
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 38.99 92.95 131.94




Note - 5.1 - Fair value of Investment property

[In Millions]
Gt a0 Particulars Valuation technique Amaur
As at As at
. 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Agricultural Lands As per Guideline 32.20 50.95
2 Other Lands and Open Plots Value of the respective 47.16 47.16
Property
TOTAL 79.36 98.11
Notes
1 On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1st April, 2021) the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all investment
property measured as per the previous GAAP and use the carrying value as deemed cost of Investment Property.
2 Nil amount of borrowing costs is capitalised.
3 Nil amount of impairment loss is recognised.




Note - 6 - Other Intangible assets

[In Millions]
Particulars Computer Total
Software
Cost/ Deemed cost
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 0.51 0.51
Additions 5 =
Transfer - -
Disposal 5 &
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 0.51 0.51
Amortisation
Balance as at April 1st, 2023 0.28 0.28
Amortisation for the year 0.14 0.14
Disposal = =
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 0.42 0.42
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 0.09 0.09
[In Millions]
Particulars Computer Total
Software

Cost/ Deemed cost
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 0.51 0.51
Additions = =
Transfer - -
Disposal - -
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 - 0.51 0.51
Amortisation
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 0.42 0.42
Amortisation for the year 0.06 0.06
Disposal . -
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 0.48 0.48
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31st, 2025 0.03 0.03
Notes:

1 The Group has neither acquired any Intangible assets through business combinations nor

revalued any of its intangible assets.

2 The Group is not having any Intangible Assets which are under development.

3 Nil amount of borrowing costs is capitalised.

4 Nil amount of impairment loss is recognised.

5 On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1st April, 2021) the Group has elected to continue with the carrying

value of all Intangible assets measured as per the previous GAAP and use the carrying value as
secost of Intangible Assets.
F A

—




Note - 7 - Non-current loans

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Unsecured
to related parties 97.50 59.32
to others 15.00 -
TOTAL 112.50 59.32
Note
Loans receivable considered good 112.50 59.32
Loans receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Loans receivable - credit impaired B -
TOTAL 112.50 59.32
Note : Refer Note 46 for related party details.
Note - 7.1 - Additional regulatory information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as regard to loans or advances
[In Millions]
Type of Borrower As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Amount of Loan or | Percentage to the total |Amount of Loan or| Percentage to the
Advance in the Loans and Advances in | Advance in the total Loans and
nature of loan the nature of loans nature of loan Advances in the
outstanding outstanding nature of loans
Promoters 97.50 86.67% 17.50 30%
Directors - - - g
KMPs - - 41.82 70%
Other Related Parties - - - -
97.50 86.67% 59.32 100%
Note - 8 - Other non-current financial assets
[Unsecured,considered good]
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Security Deposits 1.16 69.35
Balances with banks
- in deposit accounts with more than twelve months maturity 43.26 33.49
TOTAL 44 .42 102.84

Notes:

(1) Entire balance with banks in deposit accounts are held as margin money against bank guarantees

(ii) Refer Note 46 for related party details.

(iii)

Refer Note 48 on Financial instruments for determination of fair value.
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Note - 10 - Inventories

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Works contract division

- Work-in-progress 464.17 356.81
(A) 46417 356.81
Real estate division
- Developed properties 25.26 26.24
- Properties under development 376.59 314.79
(B) 401.85 341.03
TOTAL (A+B) 866.02 697.84
Notes:

(i) Amount of inventories recognised as an expense have been disclosed in Note 33.

(ii) For inventories hypothecated as security with banks against working capital loans, refer Note 24 for details.

Note - 11 - Trade receivables
[In Millions]

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Secured, considered good - 5
Unsecured, considered good 398.29 272.35
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Less : Impairment for trade receivables - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -

TOTAL 398.29 272.35

Notes:
(i) No impairment for trade receivables have been made for expected credit loss as per the judgment of the management.
(ii) Trade Receivables have been hypothecated with Banks against working capital loans, refer Note 24 for details.

(iii) Refer Note 46 for related party details.
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Note - 12 - Cash and cash equivalents

31st March, 2025

[In Millions]

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Balances with banks in current accounts 75.29 57.92
Cash on hand 6.80 7.33
Fixed deposit receipts held against bank guarantees 10.46 103.23
[with maturity less than 3 months]
TOTAL 92.55 168.48

Note - 13 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2024

Fixed deposit receipts held against bank guarantees 56.15 64.35
[with maturity between 3 to 12 months]
TOTAL 56.15 64.35
Note - 14 - Other financial assets
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Security deposits and retention money held with departments/ principals 316.11 323.35
Others - -
TOTAL 316.11 323.35
Notes:
(i) Refer Note 48 on financial instruments for determination of fair value.
(i) Refer Note 46 for related party details.
Note - 14.1 - Break-up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Non-current loans 112.50 59.32
Other non-current financial assets - 44 42 102.84
Trade receivables 398.29 272.35
Cash and cash equivalents 92.55 168.48
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 56.15 64.35
Other current financial assets 316.11 323.35
TOTAL 1,020.02 990.69
Note - 15 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Advance Income-Tax and TDS/ TCS Claim 103.40 105.27
Less : Provision for Income Tax 78.69 86.85
Current Tax Assets (Net) 24,71 18.42

>




Note - 16 - Other current assets
[Unsecured, considered good]

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A’ Capital Advances

Advance for purchase of land 13.50 0.50
Advance for purchase of vehicle . .
(A) 13.50 0.50
B. Advances other than capital advances
Advance to suppliers 27.74 5.26
Advance for expenses 1.29 0.21
Advance to employees 0.38 0.27
(B) 29.41 5.74
C. Others
Taxes paid under protest 1.24 0.97
Balances with statutory authorities 18.34 22.87
Prepaid expenses 37.18 8.30
Other receivables 57.01 -
©) 113.77 32.14
TOTAL (A+B+C) 156.68 38.38
Notes:
(i) None of the advance or receivable has been considered as having significant increase in credit risk or credit impaired loss.
(ii) Refer Note 46 for related party details.

(iif)

Prepaid expenses for the F.Y. 2024-25 and F.Y. 2023-24 includes IPO Expenses amounting to Rs. 28.70 millions and Rs. 2.20

millions respectively.

Note - 17 - Equity Share capital

A. Authorised and paid-up share capital
[In Millions]
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares Shares
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each - - 1,35,00,000 135.00
Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each 8,00,00,000 400.00 - -
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each - - 96,31,534 96.32
Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 5,77,89,204 288.95 - -
5,77,89,204 288.95 96,31,534 96.32

.




B. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

[In Millions

Paticulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

No. of Amount No. of Amount

Shares Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year of 96,31,534 96.32 96,31,534 96.32
Rs. 10/- each
Sub-division of shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each 1,92,63,068 96.32 - -
to Rs. 5/- each
Bonus Shares issued during the year 3,85,26,136 192.63 - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,77,89,204 288.95 96,31,534 96.32

Notes:

(i) The Company has increased its authorised share capital from Rs. 135.00 millions (Rupees one hundred thirty five millions)
divided into 1,35,00,000 (one crore thirty five lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 400.00 millions (Rupees four hundred
millions) divided into 4,00,00,000 (four crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- each vide a Special Resolution passed in Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on July 24th, 2024.

(i) The Company vide a Special Resolution passed in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 2nd, 2024 has sub-
divided each of its equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.5/- each.

(iii) The Company vide a Special Resolution passed in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 2nd, 2024 has made
allotment of 3,85,26,136 no. of equity shares of face value of Rs.5/- each as bonus shares in the ratio of two new equity shares
of Rs.5/- each for one equity share of Rs.5/- each by capitalization of retained earning.

C. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding
Shri Anoop Agrawal 21525702 37.25% 35,87,397 37.25%
Shri Arun Kumar Jain 1,99,53,582 34.53% 33,25,487 34.53%
Shri Riddharth Jain 53,22,264 9.21% - -
Smt. Jyoti Jain - - 13,68,620 14.21%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

8%




D. Details of shares held by promoters as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as at 31st March, 2025 and as at 31st March, 2024
Name of the Promoter As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 % Change during the
< No. of % of No. of % of year
Shares held Total Shares Shares held Total Shares
Shri Anoop Agrawal 2,15,25,702 37.25% 35,87,397 37.25% -
Shri Arun Kumar Jain 1,99,53,582 34.53% 33,25,487 34.53% -
Shri Riddharth Jain 53,22,264 9.21% - - 9.21%
Total 4,68,01,548 80.99% 69,12,884 71.78% 9.21%
E Details of shares held by promoters as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as at 31st March, 2024 and as at 31st March, 2023
Name of the Promoter As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 % Change during the
No. of % of No. of % of year
Shares held Total Shares Shares held Total Shares
Shri Anoop Agrawal 35,87,397 37.25% 35,87,397 37.25% -
Shri Arun Kumar Jain 33,25,487 34.53% 33,25,487 34.53% -
Total 69,12,884 71.78% 69,12,884 71.78% -
Note : Due to inadvertent errors, the following persons were reported as the promoters of the parent company in its standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022, whereas, factually, they are not promoters and they are merely promoter group members or
members falling under the 'others' category. Such an error has duly been rectified while drawing the standalone financial statements of the parent
company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 :
Sno. Name of the person No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares| No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares
as at 31st March, 2023 Held as at 31st March, 2022 Held
as at 31st March, as at 31st March,
2023 2022
1 Smt. Jyoti Jain 13,68,620 14.210% 13,68,620 14.210%
2 Smt. Neetu Agrawal 4,70,910 4.889% 4,70,910 4.889%
3 Smt. Rachna Agrawal 3,76,310 3.907% 3,76,310 3.907%
4 Shri Alok Agrawal 3,67,510 3.816% 3,67,510 3.816%
5 Shri Ravi Bansal 1,10,000 1.142% 1,10,000 1.142%
6 Shri Arun Kumar Jain HUF 24,750 0.257% 24,750 0.257%
7 Shri Ajay Tandon 110 0.001% 110 0.001%
8 Shri Deepak Kumar Agrawal HUF 110 0.001% 110 0.001%
9 Shri Om Prakash Gupta 110 0.001% 110 0.001%
10  |Smt. Tripat Kaur Ameja 110 0.001% 110 0.001%
1 Shri Vikas Kumar Agrawal 110 0.001% 110 0.001%
F. Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has issued only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share which have subsequently been sub-divided by it into equity
shares having par value of Rs.5/- each by passing a Special Resolution in its Exira Ordinary General Meeting held on August 2nd, 2024. Each shareholder is
eligible for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts, in proportion of their sharehoiding.

G.

0]

(ii)

Shares issued in aggregate number and class of shares allotted by way of bonus shares and shares bought back during the period of five
years immediately preceding the date of 31st March, 2025

The Company has issued Bonus Shares during the year ended 31st March, 2025 as per details given as under:

Date of Allotment No. of Equity Face Value Issue Price Nature of Allotment Total
Shares Alloted per Equity Share per Equity Share Consideration
(in Lakhs)
August 20th, 2024 3.85,26,136 5 Nil Bonus Issue in the Nil
ratio of 2:1

Except the above, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date, there are no shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of
bonus shares or allotled as fully paid-up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash. Further, the Company has not issued any

e into equity shares. The Company has also not bought back its shares.
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Note - 18 - Other Equity

[In Millions
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
General reserve 30.00 20.00
Retained earnings 808.95 814,88
Other comprehensive income 0.46 0.50
TOTAL 839.41 835.38

Note - 18.1 - Nature and purposes of reserves

(a)

(b)

General reserve

General reserve is referred to as the reserve fund that is created by keeping aside a part of profit earned by the business during
the course of an accounting period for fulfilling various business needs like meeting contingencies, offsetting future losses,

enhancing the working capital, paying dividends to the shareholders, etc.

The details of movement in General reserve is as below:

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 20.00 10.00
Add : Amount transferred from Retained earnings 10.00 10.00
Balance at the end of the year 30.00 20.00 |

Retained earnings

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders.

The details of movement in Retained earnings is as below:

[In Millions
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 814.88 634.40
Add : Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 196.70 189.62
1,011.58 824.02
Less : Amount transferred to General reserve 10.00 10.00
1,001.58 814.02
Less : Capitalization of reserve for issuance of bonus shares 192.63 -
808.95 814.02
Less : Dividend paid - =
808.95 814.02
Add/(less) : Transition Impact as per Ind AS 101
- Remeasurement of non current borrowings at amortised cost - 0.85
- Acturial (gain)/losses due to remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - 0.02
- Tax impacts of items reclassified in other comprehensive income - (0.01)
Balance at the end of the year 808.95 814.88 |

E o



(c) Other comprehensive income
. Other comprehensive Income represents amounts of acturial gains/(losses) on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations.
The details of movement in Other comprehensive income is as below:
[In Millions!
> Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.50 0.51
Add : Acturial gain/(losses) due to remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (0.06) -
Tax impacts of items reclassified in other comprehensive income 0.02 -
Add : Transition impact as per Ind AS 101
- Acturial gain/(losses) due to remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - (0.02)
- Tax impacts of items reclassified in other comprehensive income - 0.01
Balance at the end of the year 0.46 0.50 |
Note - 19 - Non-controlling Interests
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

A. Highway & Tandon Tollways Private Limited

Share in E
Share in R
Share in P

quity share capital
etained earnings
rofit/(loss) for the year

(A)

B. Highway & Tandon Tollways [AOP]
Share in fixed capital

Share in current capital

Share in Retained earnings

rofit for the year

Share in P

(B)

TOTAL (A+B)

0.49 0.49
0.19 1.33
466 (1.13)
5.34 0.69
0.49 0.49
(42.20) 6.35
62.61 36.97
2262 25.65
4352 69.46
48.86 70.15

\




Note - 20 - Non-current borrowings

[In Millions]
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
A, Term loans
Secured
From Banks 23.35 18.84 20.76 19.23
(A) 23.35 18.84 20.76 19.23
B. Loans and advances from related parties
Unsecured
From directors & relatives - - 0.15 -
From body corporates 107.32 - 63.44 -
(B) 107.32 - 63.59 -
C. Other loans and advances
Unsecured
From body corporates - - - 5
From others - £ - .
©) - - . :
TOTAL (A+B+C) 130.67 18.84 84.35 19.23
Notes:
(i) The current portion of the borrowings represent the principal amount of loan, which is repayable in next twelve months and the
same has been classfied under Note 24 'Short term borrowings' .
(ii) Refer Note 48 for information about liquidity risk.
(iii) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(iv)

Refer Note 46 for related party details.
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Note - 20.1 - Summary of secured and unsecured loans as follows:

[In Millions
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Secured long term borrowings 23.35 20.76
Secured short term borrowings 587.48 611.87
Unsecured long term borrowings 107.32 63.59
TOTAL 718.15 696.22
Note - 21 - Non-current lease liabilities
[In Millions]
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Lease liabilities for land and office 1.35 1.65 3.00 1.47
TOTAL 1.35 1.65 3.00 1.47

Notes:

(i) The current portion of the lease liabities represent the lease rental which is payable in next twelve months and has been
classfied under Note 25 'Current lease liabilities'.

(ii) For details on the implications of application of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements, refer Note 44.

(i)  The Group has taken land and office on operating leases. These lease arrangements range for a period between 4 years to 7
years. The leases are reneweable for further period on mutually agreeable terms.

Note - 22 - Other non-current financial liabilities

[In Millions]
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Sinking fund - - - -
TOTAL - - - -
Note - 23 - Long term provisions
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
For Gratuity 3.7 3.58
[refer Note 45]
TOTAL 3.71 3.58
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Note - 24 - Current borrowings
[Loans repayable on demand, secured]

[In Millions]

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

WBrking capital loans repayable on demand
Secured

Cash credit facilities from banks

568.64

459.04

Overdraft facilities from banks
Current maturities of long term debt

- 133.60
18.84 19.23

TOTAL 587.48 611.87

0]

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Notes:

Cash credit facilities availed from HDFC Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge and hypothecation of entire
stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumables, stores and spares and other movables including book
debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future. The facilities as above are
further secured by way of security deposits (retention money deposits with principal) and equitable mortgage of immovable
property of the Company and personal guarantees of Mr. Arun Jain, Mr. Anoop Agrawal, Smt. Jyoti Jain, Smt. Vimla Agrawal
and Mr. Alok Agrawal.

Cash credit facilities availed from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge on all the companies
current assets and moveable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future along with Yes Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Ltd.,
HDFC Bank Ltd. and Indusind Bank. The facilities as above are further secured by way first and exclusive charge on equitable
mortgage of immovable properties held in the name of the Company and personal guarantees of Mr. Arun Jain, Mr. Anoop
Agrawal and Mr. Ankit Tandon.

Cash credit facilities availed from Axis Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge on all the companies current
assets and moveable fixed assets of the company, both present and future along with Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., Yes Bank Ltd.
HDFC Bank Ltd. and Indusind Bank except for those specifically financed by any other bank or financial institution. The facilities
as above are further secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable properties held in the name of the company and
personal guarantees of Mr. Arun Jain, Mr. Anoop Agrawal, Smt. Jyoti Jain, Smt. Vimla Agrawal and Mr. Alok Agrawal.

Cash credit facilities availed from Yes Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge on all the companies current
assets and moveable fixed assets of the company (excluding CE & CV), both present and future along with Axis Bank Ltd.,
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank Ltd. and Indusind Bank. The facilities as above are further secured by way of equitable
mortgage of immovable properties held in the name of the company and personal guarantees of Mr. Arun Jain, Mr. Anoop
Agrawal, Smt. Jyoti Jain, Smt. Vimla Agrawal and Mr. Alok Agrawal.

Cash credit facilities availed from Indusind Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge on all the companies current
assets and moveable fixed assets of the company both present and future along with HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra Bank
Ltd., Axis Bank Ltd. and Yes Bank Ltd. except for those specifically financed by any other bank or financial institution. The
facilities as above are further secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable properties held in the name of the company
and personal guarantees of Mr. Arun Jain, Mr. Anoop Agrawal, Smt. Neetu Agrawal Jain, Smt. Rachna Agrawal and Mr. Ankit

Cash credit facilities availed from HDFC Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge and hypothecation of entire
stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumables, stores and spares and other movables including book
debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future. The facilities as above are
further secured by way of first and exclusive charge on equitable mortgage of immovable properties of members and relatives
of unincorporated entity and personal guarantee of all the members and owners of mortgaged properties.

Cash credit facilities availed from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. are secured by way of first/ pari passu charge with HDFC Bank on
all existing and future current assets of the unincorporated entity. The facilities as above are further secured by way of first and
exclusive lein of fixed deposit of fifty percent of facility amount and personal guarantee of all the members.




Note - 25 - Current lease liabilities

[In Millions]

Pa_rliculars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Current maturities of lease liabilities 1.65 1.47

TOTAL 1.65 1.47
Note - 26 - Current trade payables

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 61.59 A2
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 90.22 136.58
Total outstanding disputed dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 245 0.56
Total outstanding disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises - -

TOTAL 154.26 142 26

Notes :

(i) Refer Note 46 for Related party details.

Note - 26.1 - Information to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The information as required to be disclosed under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. The details of amount

of princpal and interest outstanding is given below :

[In Millions]

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

(b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year

(c) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

(e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year

) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

64.04

5.68
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Note - 27 - Other financial liabilities

[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
; 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Creditors for capital goods 0.02 15.08
Creditors for expenses 11.29 4.33
Security deposits and retention money 191.49 132.66
Interest accrued but not due on cash credit facilities 17T 0.43
TOTAL 204.57 152.50
Notes :
(i) Refer Note 46 for Related party details.
Note - 27.1 - Break-up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
[In Millions]

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Non-current borrowings 130.67 84.35
Non-current lease liabilities 1.35 3.00
Non-current other financial liabilities - -
Current borrowings 587.48 611.87
Current lease liabilities 1.65 1.47
Current trade payables 154.26 142.26
Current other financial liabilities 204.57 152.50
TOTAL 1,079.98 995.45
Note - 28 - Other current liabilities
[In Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A. Revenue received in advance
Advance from customers 26.52 8.37
(A) 26.52 8.37
B. Others
Statutory Liabilities 12.22 1.09
(B) 12.22 1.09
TOTAL (A+B) 38.74 9.46

Notes :

provident fund.

(i) Refer Note 46 for related party details.

(i) Statutory liabilities include liabilities for professional tax, goods and services tax, employee state insurance, entry tax &

\é\\/
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Note - 29 - Provisions

31st March, 2025

[in Millions]
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
For employee benefits 7.81 8.57
For others 8.16 7.43
TOTAL 15.97 16.00
Note - 30 - Revenue from operations
[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Toll collection receipts 3,824.07 4,783.47
Works contract receipts 901.92 750.86
Real estate sales 78.04 28.26
Material sales 120.05 137.95
Machineries & equipments hire charges 32.92 33.13
Maintenance charges receipts 0.15 0.87
TOTAL 4,957.15 5,734.54
Notes :
(i) Refer Note 46 for related party details.
Note - 31 - Other income
[In Millions
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2024

Interest income 21.24 16.34
Land lease income 0.39 0.37
Business auxiliary services 11.44 1217
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 3.38 -
Profit on sale of investment properties 28.42 0.57
Profit on sale of land converted into stock-in-trade 0.81 1.64
Forfeiture of performance security deposit of sub-contractors 17.84 -
Reversal of bank guarantee charges 0.97 -
Rebate, reward, discount & miscellaneous income 3.14 0.13

TOTAL 87.63 31.22
Note - 32 - Operating costs

[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Toll usage charges 3,672.35 4,373.82
Material purchases 304.18 262.92
Sub contract work expenses 651.45 553.08
Site labour charges 50.16 32.09
Purchase of land and development expenses 50.13 13.94
Machineries running and maintenance 11.25 445
Electricity expenses .13 7.38
Toll software charges 0.02 0.02
Labour welfare cess 6.24 6.27
Hiring charges 0.68 1.46
Legal & professional fees 1.15 212
Tender & stamp duty expenses 0.30 1.28
Freight & transportation expenses 0.58 0.05
Testing charges 0.17 0.21
Toll survey expenses 145 4.33
Miscellaneous expenses 0.79 0.50

TOTAL 4,658.63 5,263.92
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Note - 33 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A. Inventories at the begining of the year
Works contract division
- Work-in-progress (i) 356.81 291.54
- Real estate division
Developed properties 26.24 33.14
Properties under development 314.79 279.96
(ii) 341.03 313.10
(A) (i+ii) 697.84 604.64
B. Inventories at the end of the year
Works contract division
- Work-in-progress (i) 464.17 356.81
- Real estate division
Developed properties 25.26 26.24
Properties under development 376.59 314.79
(ii) 401.85 341.03
(B) (i+ii) 866.02 697.84
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES (A-B) (168.18) (93.20)
Note - 34 - Employee benefits expense
[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Key managerial remuneration 18.20 11.70
Directors' sitting fees 0.29 0.17
Salary, wages, gratuity & other benefits 90.21 120.74
TOTAL 108.70 132.61
Notes :
(i) Refer Note 46 for related party details.
Note - 35 - Finance costs
[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Interest expense 57.97 T3
Bank charges & commission 1.65 1.57
Interest on lease liabilities 0.38 0.48
Bank guarantee charges 8.40 8.61
Bank stamp duty charges 0.10 0.33
Loan processing charges 5.85 6.53
TOTAL 74.35 90.25

Notes :

(i) Refer Note 46 for related party details.
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Note - 36 - Depreciation and amortisation expenses

[In Millions]

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 22.65 24.79
1Depreciation on Right-of-Use Assets 1.24 1.18

Amortisation of Intangible assets 0.06 0.14

TOTAL 23.95 26.11
Note - 37 - Other expenses
[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A. Administrative expenses

Rent

Stationery & printing

Postage & courier expenses
Telephone and mobile expenses
Internet expenses

Electricity expenses

Auditors' remuneration

Legal & professional expenses
Filing fees

Insurance

Directors' keyman insurance premium
Conveyance & travelling expenses
Software support charges

General repairs & maintenance
Vehicle running expenses

Security expenses

Rates & taxes

Contribution towards corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Loss on sale of assets
Donation

Office & general expenses
Security Deposit Forfeited
Miscellaneous expenses

Marketing expenses

Advertisement & publicity expenses
Business promotion expenses
Commission expenses

Sundry balances written-off

TOTAL

(A)

(B)

(A+B)

1.53 2.31
0.45 0.41
0.04 0.04
0.14 0.33
0.36 255
2.09 2.91
0.41 0.24
6.89 6.83
0.26 0.02
1.77 2.15
- 1.01
1.7 2.24
- 0.02
1.86 1.24
9.13 7.68
T 3.60
2.04 0.65
3.60 0.88
- 4.04
- 0.25
4.36 6.18
4.53 -
0.24 0.48
43.18 46.06
0.19 0.06
0.11 0.35
0.10 0.13
1.20 0.19
1.60 0.73
44.78 46.79

Notes :
(i)
(i)

Miscellaneous expenses do not include any item of expenditure with a value of more than 1% of the revenue from operations

Refer Note 46 for related party details.




Note - 37.1 - Break-up of payment to Auditors

[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
2 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
(a) Auditors' Remuneration
- Statutory audit fees 0.36 0.19
- Tax audit fees 0.05 0.05
(b) Certification and consultation fees 0.19 0.05
TOTAL 0.60 0.29
Note :

@

Payments to statutory auditors, during the year ended on 31st March, 2025, for various examination, attestations and
certification assignments related to IPO work of a sum of Rs. 3.00 millions have been incorporated into prepaid expenses - Note

16 and not included in the Auditors' Remuneration.

Note - 38 - Other comprehensive income

[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently into profit or loss :

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
V)

(vi)
(vii)

0}
(i)
(iii)
(v)

Change in revaluation surplus

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Tax effect of remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Equity instrument of the defined benefit plans

Fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial liabilities designted
at fair value through profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive Income in associate and joint ventures, to the
extent not to be classified into profit or loss

Others

(A)

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss :

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operation
Debt instruments through other comprehensive Income

The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge
Share of other comprehensive Income in Associate and Joint Ventures, to the
extent not to be classified into profit or loss

(0-.06)

(0.02)
0.02 0.01
(0.04) (0.01)




Note - 39 - Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

[In Millions

Particulars Year ended Year ended

5 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Highway & Tandon Tollways Private Limited 4.66 (1.13)
Highway & Tandon Tollways 2262 25.65
TOTAL 27.28 24.52
Note - 40 - Earnings per equity share

[In Millions

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

TNoL

Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share :

pecl d0jUSIME

Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating basic EPS
Weighted average potential equity shares

Total weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS

Basic Earning Per Share (in Rs.)
Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.)
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share post sub-division and bonus :

fer m £

eCiive aaiusiime aum ] Uity Sia

Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating adjusted EPS [Refer Note - (i) below]

Weighted average number of potential equity shares
Total weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS [Refer Note - (i) below]

Basic Earning Per Share (in Rs.)
Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.)

196.70
5,77,89,204

5,77,89,204

3.40
3.40

196.70
5,77,89,204

5,77,89,204

3.40
3.40

189.62
96,31,634

96,31,5634

19.69
19.69

189.62
5,77,89,204

5,77,89,204

3.28
3.28

Notes :

(i) The Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and all the years presented is adjusted for events,
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For changes in

number of equity shares outstanding, Refer Note -17.

(ii)

EPS and diluted EPS remains same.

The Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus, weighted average number of shares for computation of basic

| &




Note - 41 - The reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit

[In Millions

Particulars Year ended Year ended
2 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Profit before tax 302.55 299.28
Efféct of Ind AS adjustments (1.34) (0.10)
Adjusted profit before tax 301.21 299.18
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed tax expense 75.81 75.30
Tax effect of:
Income not taxable (8.00) -
Expenses disallowable 1.10 2.28
Depreciation 1.09 -
Set off of Unabsorbed Depreciation and business losses (0.29) -
Tax rate difference on capital gain income (0.03) (0.17)
Tax rate difference of unincorporated subsidiary T 8.79
Other differences 1.31 0.65
Actual current tax expenses 78.70 86.85
Effective tax rate 26.01% 29.02%
Note - 42 - Contingent liabilities & commitments
[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

(i) Contingent liabilities

A. Guarantees
- Against bank guarantees issued by the bank
- Corporate bank guarantee
- Related parties
- Bank gurantee on behalf of associates
- Related parties

B. Other money for which the Group is contingently liable

against pending litigations
- Entry tax

- Service tax

- Others

C. Expected expenditure on road maintenance

Total

—
(=]

761.75 710.84
- 54.10
1.40 1.40
763.15 766.34
1.37 1.37
13.32 13.32
15.82 15.82
30.51 30.51
2.36 2.03
2.36 2.03




(i) Commitments

- Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account -
and not provided for

- Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid -

- Other commitments

Notes:

(i) It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of
the respective proceedings.

(i) The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities

(iii) Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determined only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at
various forums / authorities.

(iv)  The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims against the company pertaining to proceedings pending with sales/ VAT tax
and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Group does not
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

Note - 43 - Information as required to be given as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

[In Millions]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

A. Key managerial remuneration

- Salary and allowances 18.20 11.70
B. Foreign currency transactions
i) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis

- Raw material - -

- Components and spare parts 7 =
- Capital goods = 2

ii) Expenditure in foreign currency - -
iii) Earning in foreign currency
- Export of goods calculated on FOB basis - -
- Royalty, Know how, professional & consultation fees - E

- Interest and dividend - -
- Other income - N
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12 Disclosure relating to various ratios
(i) For the year ended 31st March, 2025
[In Milliong.]_‘
Sno. Particulars As at As at % of Changes Remarks
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 compared to (mandatory if
preceding year Variation>25%) |
(a) Current ratio (in times)
[Current assets / current liabilities]
Current assets 1,910.51 1,583.17
Current liabilities 1,002.67 933.56
Current ratio 1.91 1.70 12.36% Not Applicable
(b) Debt equity ratio (in times)
[Total debts / fotal equity]
Total debts 718.15 696.22
[Non current borrowings + current borrowings]
Total equity 1,177.22 1,001.85 Mot Applicable
Debt equity ratio 0.61 0.69 (12.22%)
(] Debt service coverage ratio (in times)
[Earning available for debt service / debt service]
Earning available for debt service 32228 330.50
[Profit after taxes + finance costs + depreciation / amortisation]
Debt service 93.58 121.73
[Finance costs + scheduled principal repayment of non cument
|borrowings (current maturities of long term debts of previous year)]
Debt service ratio 3.44 272 26.85% Due to more
decrease in debt
[Principal repayments] 19.23 3148 service as compared
[Finance cost ] 74.35 90.25 to earning available
for debt service
(d) Return on equity ratio (in percentage)
[Profit after tax / average total equity]
Profit after tax 223.98 21414
Average total equity 1,089.53 874.96
[(Opening total equity + closing total equity)/2] Not Applicable
Return on equity ratio 20.56% 24 47% (16.00%)
(e) Inventory turnover ratio (in times)
[Sale of prodeucts / average inventory]
Sale of products 1,100.01 917.07 T
Average inventory [(opening inventory + closing inventory) / 2] 781.93 651.24 Not Applicable
Inventory turnover ratio 1.407 1.408 (0.10%)
(f Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times)
[Turnover/ average trade receivables]
Turnover (revenue from operations) 4.957.15 5,734.54
Average trade recievables 335,32 250.95 Due to decrease in
[(Opening trade receivables + closing trade receivables)/2] turnover and increase
Trade receivable turnover ratio 14.78 22.85 (35.31%)| in trade receivables
(g) |Trade payable turnover ratio (in time)
[Net purchases/ average trade payables]
. Due to decrase in
Net purchases (operating costs) 4,658,63 5,263.92 operating costs and
Average trade payables 148,26 107.72 increase in trade
[(Opening trade payables + closing trade payables)/2] payables
Trade payable turnover ratio 3142 48.87 (35.70%)
(h} Net capital turnover ratio (in times)
[Turnover / working capital]
Turnc!\.rar (revenue from operations) 4.957.15 5,734.54 Due to decrease in
Working capital 907.84 649.61 turnover but increase
[Current assets (-} current liabilities] in working capital.
Net capital tum}[ ratio 5.46 8.83 (38.14%)

L3




-

A

[in Millions]
Sno. Particulars As at As at % of Changes Remarks
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 compared to (mandatory if
preceding year Variation>25%)
&
(i) Net profit ratio (in percentage)
- [Net profit after tax / turnover]
| - Profit after tax 223.98 214.14 Aoplicabl
| Turnover 4,957.15 5,734.54 et Apphy
i Net profit ratio 4.52% 3.73% 21.00%
!
) Return on capital employed (in percentage)
[Earning before interest & tax / capital employed]
Earning before interest & tax 376.90 389.53
Capital employed 1,895.37 1,698.07 Not Applicable
[Total equity + total borrowings]
Return on capital employed 19.89% 22.94% (13.31%)
(k) Return on investment ratio (in percentage)
[Net gain on investment / investment] Bue o increase:tn nat
Net gain on investment 28.42 0.57 galn on ivestment &
decrease in the value
Investment 131.94 149.85 o invgehrisnt
Return of investment ratio 21.54% 0.38% 5562.78% :
|

W
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